
 

 
 

CITY OF TORRINGTON 
Addendum # 1 

 
           ADDENDUM #1 HAS BEEN ISSUED REGARDING EXTEND THE BID OPENING    
       DATE TO DECEMBER 23, 2014 AT 11:00 AM AND RESPOND TO QUESTIONS/    
       ANSWERS SUBMITTED  
 
RFQ #TCS-011-121614-Tax Collector Services 
 
Date of opening: Dec. 16, 2014 Time: 11:00 AM Location: City Hall, 140 Main St., Room 206, Torrington, CT   
 
Submit signed addenda with bid. 
 
The City of Torrington reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids or any portion thereof, to waive 
technicalities, and to award the contract as will best serve the public interest. 
 
Dated in Torrington:  December 9, 2014       Purchasing Agent ______________________________  

                       Pennie Zucco 
                                                

Bid Submitted By:____________________________    ____________________________________ 
                                  Signature 
Name of Company____________________________ ____________________________________ 
                                  Title 
Address____________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________ Date ________________________________    

 
The Bid Opening Date has been extended to: 
 DECEMBER 23, 2014 AT 11:00 AM 
 
Questions & Answers 12/10/14 
 

1-Q) The RFQ and Contract call for the Tax Collector to remit all un-refunded overpayments to the City of  
     Torrington at the conclusion of the fiscal year.  Conn. Gen. Stat. § 12-129 requires that refunds be      
     made upon application made not later than three years from the date such tax was due.  Does the     
   reference to ‘fiscal year’ in the contract coincide with the third year of the three-year application       
   deadline?  Or does it coincide with the first year, and if so, will the City handle refund applications     
     after the first year?  

 1-A) No, at the conclusion of each fiscal year, all unrefunded overpayments received during that year 
       must be turned over to the city.  Yes, the city will handle refund applications.   

 2-Q) When the Tax Collector notifies the City about a tax execution or jeopardy collection, will the City be 
       allowed to notify the taxpayer?  

 2-A) no, any prior notice given to the city will remain confidential  

 3-Q) Does the Tax Collector have exclusive possession of the office space provided at the Municipal           
         Building?  

 3-A) Yes  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 4-Q) Does the Tax Collector need to name the City as an additional insured on the Automobile Liability             
       policies (RFQ p.4) when that type of insurance is not required under the RFQ or Contract?  

 4-A) N/A  

 5-Q) Why will the City consider the bidder’s “experience and expertise in providing actuarial services” in    
         reviewing the bids (RFQ p.5)? 

 5-A) N/A  

 6-Q) Paragraph 1 of the Contract states that the Tax Collector is entitled to retain all back taxes collected     
       during said period and all interest allowed pursuant to the State statute.  The audit alleged that the    
    Tax Collector is not entitled to keep interest on back taxes from before November 1.  Can you confirm 
    that the Tax Collector is entitled to all interest on back taxes including the amount accrued prior to          
      November 1 of each year?   

 6-A) Yes, all interest earned is payable to tax collector, provided that the tax bill is not originating   
    from  any previous tax collector’s term.  

 7-Q) Are sections 170-7 and 170-9 of the Torrington Code (regarding collection of sewer use charges)          
       applicable to the new contract?  

 7-A) Yes  

 8-Q) Will the new contract include the following provision, as stated in the contract with the prior tax         
    collector:  

“the City shall ensure that any appointments of successor tax collectors include a 
provision in the City’s agreement with such successor(s) stating that such successor 
tax collector “shall cooperate with ROBERT CROVO TAX COLLECTOR, its 
agents or assigns, as to the collection of any taxes, interest, penalties, or fees due 
ROBERT CROVO TAX COLLECTOR and shall promptly forward any and all 
payments due ROBERT CROVO TAX COLLECTOR, its agents and assigns, in 
accordance with Section 12-144b of the Connecticut Statutes  upon receipt and shall 
communicate any and all relevant information regarding the taxpayers or properties 
where such amounts are still due ROBERT CROVO TAX COLLECTOR.  It is 
further understood that ROBERT CROVO TAX COLLECTOR, its agents and/or 
assigns, shall be considered a third party beneficiary to such contract between the 
City and such successor tax collectors.”  

 8-A) Yes 
 9–Q) To the extent the successor Tax Collector is required to apply payments to the oldest taxes owed,       
         what responsibilities will the successor Tax Collector have to provide an accounting to the City of the 
    payments made to the prior Tax Collector?   
 
 9-A) Comprehensive accounting of taxes collected and paid to previous tax collector must be         
        submitted to city on a monthly basis  
 
 10–Q)The prior contract contained a provision that the Tax Collector did not owe interest for 18 months   
    following a tax sale if the Tax Collector would be the successful bidder.  In every other municipality, 
    if the Tax Collector is the winner at a tax sale, the municipality becomes the owner of the property   
         and no taxes are owed until the property is transferred. Will the Tax Collector be required to pay taxes 
    going forward if  he is the successful bidder? 
 10-A) Yes, after 18 months 



 

 11-Q) In what manner will the Tax Collector be entitled to challenge the assessment made for property that         
    does not exist or for property that is improperly assessed?  

 11-A) The topics will be discussed with to be formed committee which will meet monthly and consist      
      of the Tax Collector, Assessor, Treasurer, Comptroller, Mayor’s office  

 12-Q) Considering that personal property and motor vehicle are the most difficult types of property on    
     which to collect taxes, can you state the percentage increase (or decrease) in the value of these    
     categories on the overall Grand List for the upcoming year?  

 12-A) Information not available  

 13-Q) How will the City work with the Tax Collector if the Tax Collector becomes the winning bidder of a 
        tax sale on properties that are considered brownfields or otherwise have environmental concerns? 

 13-A) The City will work with tax collector just as it would with any other property owner.  Assist   
        with obtaining information on brownfields grants/remediation etc.  
 14-Q) If the Tax Collector obtains a letter of credit in the amount of $7,000,000 guaranteeing the payment  
     of amounts due on tax rate books to the City, will the Tax Collector be required to obtain any other  
     bonds besides a surety bond in accordance with Section 12-136 of the Connecticut General Statutes  
     that guarantees the faithful discharge of his duties?  
 
 14-A) No 
  
 15-Q) May current mailing of any new grand list bills be conducted prior to July 1 each year and any 
 funds received from said mailing be held until July 1 when they would be remitted to the City 
 Treasurer? 
 
 15-A) Typically, any tax revenue received prior due the due date (July 1st and/or January 1st) are     
          remitted to the City Treasurer as “prepaid taxes”. 
 
 16-Q) Does the City require that the firm's designated tax collector have a CCMC certification prior 
 to award of contract? 
 
 16-A) Neither Torrington City Charter, nor State Statute require the Tax Collector have a CCMC 
 certification, however, such certification is preferred.  
 
 17-Q) Expressed in dollars, what was the commission paid to the current tax collector for services for the 
   following City fiscal years: 
 
 17-A) 

Fiscal Year Commission Paid 
FY 2010‐2011     $189,122.42 
FY 2011‐2012     $  95,676.99  
FY 2012‐2013     $  99,032.35 
FY 2013‐2014     $102,169.05 

 
 18-Q) Expressed in dollars, what was the original tax amount by grand list year and receivable type that 
 was boarded to QDS either by the Assessor or the WPCA as a beginning balance for the tax collector 
 to collect: 
 
 
 



 

 18-A) 
Grand List Year Real Estate Motor Vehicle Personal Property Sewer Use 
GL 2010   $64,578,120    $6,471,031         $4,565,756     $3,445,076 
GL 2011   $66,705,531    $6,986,062         $4,712,048     $3,465,440 
GL 2012   $68,916,252    $6,983,857         $4,875,024     $3,461,184 
GL 2013 (to date)   $72,635,587    $7,575,336         $5,357,573     $3,564,846 

 
    19-Q) What is the City's current estimate regarding the yearly percentage increase of the City Grand List 
     for the term of the new tax collector agreement? 
 
  19-A) Not Available 
 
   20-Q) Expressed in dollars, what is the total amount collected (including accrued interest and fees)     
    from original due date through June 30, 2014 for each of the grand list years and receivable types   
    listed in the table below: 
 

Grand List Year Real Estate Motor Vehicle Personal Property Sewer Use 
GL 2010     
GL 2011     
GL 2012     
GL 2013 (to date)     

 
20-A) Information shown on Page 316 of Forensic Audit (link posted on City website,      
 http://www.torrington-ct.gov/Public_Documents/index) 
  
21-Q) What are the collection rates, expressed as a percentage to the thousandth place (0.000%), for each of 
 the respective fiscal years? 
 

Grand List Year Real Estate Motor Vehicle Personal Property Sewer Use 
GL 2010     
GL 2011     
GL 2012     
GL 2013 (to date)     

 
21-A) “See Audit pages 313 – 315” (http://www.torrington-ct.gov/Public_Documents/index) 
 
22-Q) Any other City receivables (non‐tax) collected by the tax collector? If so, what are they? 
 
22-A) Taxes and Sewer Use Fees are only responsibility of Tax Collector 
 
23-Q) Under previous RFQs the City had a requirement for pre‐payments wherein the tax collector paid 
 the City for remaining unpaid tax bills as of a certain date. Is this still a requirement? If so, on what 
 dates are the payments to be made? 
 
23-A) Settlement Dates are dictated by Torrington City Charter, Section 14-2: The Board of 
Councilmen may direct that the Tax Collector of said City shall deposit to the credit of said City all 
moneys collected at such frequent intervals as it shall provide. The first installment of the total taxes 
due on the rate books of the City shall be deposited in the City treasury on or before the first Monday 
in November in each year, and the second installment of said taxes shall be so deposited on or before 
the first Monday in May of the following year, The Board of Councilmen may direct that the Tax 
Collector of said City shall deposit to the credit of said City all moneys collected at such frequent 



 

intervals as it shall provide. The first installment of the total taxes due on the rate books of the City 
shall be deposited in the City treasury on or before the first Monday in November in each year, and 
the second installment of said taxes shall be so deposited on or before the first Monday in May of the 
following year. . . . 
 
24-Q) If pre‐payments are included in any agreement between the tax collector and the City, what is the 
 procedure for reimbursement to the tax collector for taxes paid if a full or partial abatement, 
 bankruptcy discharge, or certificate of change enters on any tax bill? 
 
24-A) Frequent reconciliations are conducted by Assessor, Finance Department and Corporation    
    Counsel and any necessary tax adjustments are made accordingly. 
 
25-Q) Under any agreement between tax collector and the City, is the tax collector permitted to recover  
  delinquent obligor costs of collections as allowed by statute? 
 
25-A) Tax collector obligor costs:  all fees and costs incurred by tax collector shall be charged to the  
    delinquent taxpayer and recovered by the tax collector at the time of payment.   Sec. 12-140.   
    Fees of Tax Collectors 
 
26-Q) Does the City intend to keep for itself interest accruals on the collections account prior to  
 settlement of any tax collector payment to the City? 
 
26-A) The city has no intention of keeping interest accruals on the collections account prior to      
    settlement of any tax collector payment 
 
27-Q) How does the City intend to account for interest paid by taxpayers who have paid in August, 
 September and October prior to settlement of any tax collector payment to the City? 
 
27-A) All interest that shall accrue on unpaid taxes from the date due, shall be payable to the tax      
    collector. 
 
28-Q) Have there been any litigation set‐offs or claims paid to the current tax collector from the City? If 
  so, when were the payments made and how much was paid? 
 
28-A) No legal setoffs or claims paid to the current tax collector 

29-Q) In the case of litigation or appeal of an assessed tax where the taxpayer pays the statutory required 
 75% (for property assessed at under $500,000) or 90% (for property assessed at over $500,000) of 
 the tax amount due in order to sustain the litigation, would the tax collector receive reimbursement for 
 any amount of the tax paid to the City that is left unpaid in the case of taxpayer success in the 
 litigation? 
 
29-A) All Assessment adjustments are done through Certificates of Change issued by the Assessor’s  
    office and any tax adjustments are done in accordance with reconciliation procedures states in  
    #10. 
 
30-Q) What is the effect of the issuance of full or partial abatement, bankruptcy discharge or certificate of 
  change regarding the commission paid to the tax collector by the City? 
 
30-A) Adjustments are done in accordance with reconciliation procedures stated in #10 

31-Q) If a full or partial abatement or certificate of change is issued that is a direct consequence of work 
 performed by the tax collector, would there be a commission paid to the tax collector relative to the 
 abatement or certificate of change amounts as that work lead directly to the resolution of the tax? 



 

 
31-A) Does not apply 
 
32-Q) How are non‐abated taxes resolved with the tax collector where an abatement is requested but the 
 Assessor refuses? 
 
32-A) Abatements are only issued by the office of the Mayor with City Council approval 
 
33-Q) For prior year taxes controlled by any prior tax collector, for abatements, assessment appeals or 
 litigation, certificates of change, or any other set‐off or claim that is made relative to those taxes 
 controlled by the prior tax collector, would the City require the current tax collector to reimburse 
 the prior tax collector from its funds or would the City make that reimbursement? 
 
33-A) The City is responsible for any adjustments to prior years’ taxes controlled by the prior tax 
 collector.  
 
34-Q) Is a copy of the current agreement with all amendments between the City and the current tax    
 collector available? 
 
34-A) yes, see attached 
 
35-Q) Is the proposed agreement between the City and the tax collector negotiable? 
 

35-A) Yes 
 
36-Q) Is the City able to provide a copy of the complaint filed by the current tax collector against the City 
 of Torrington? Is the dispute resolved? If so, how was the dispute resolved? 
 

36-A) Yes, available upon request. The complaint was withdrawn by the plaintiff.  
 
37-Q) Is the City able to identify all defaults in the operation of the tax office of the current tax collector 
 and identify if these defaults were cured? If so, how where they cured? 
 

37-A) Deficiencies identified through the Forensic Audit and the proposed contract has been drafted 
 to correct said deficiencies.  
 
38-Q) What is the current name and version of the software used by the Assessor, by the Finance 
 Department and by the Treasurer? 
 

38-A) Assessor’s office and Tax Collector’s office use QDS which is a Windows based version           
   3.0.557. The Treasurer and Finance Department  use New World.  
 
39-Q) Does the software used currently by the tax office interface electronically with the Finance Director, 
 Treasurer and Assessor software or will the vendor need to provide programming in order to link the 
 systems? 
 

39-A) The software used by the Tax Collector interfaces with the Assessor’s office only.  
 
40-Q) What is the licensing amount paid to the City's current software vendor for use of the tax software? 
 Who pays this amount? If paid by the tax collector, is the cost reimbursed by the City? 
 

40-A) The annual licensing cost is $8,850.00 and is paid by the city.  
 



 

 
41-Q) What is the layout and approximate square footage of the space leased by the City to the current 
 tax collector? 
 

41-A) The tax office comprises 1020 square feet of space on the first floor of City Hall 
 
42-Q) Would any office equipment, furniture or fixtures of the current tax collector remain behind for use    
 by the new tax collector? 
 
42-A) All office equipment, furniture and fixtures are owned by the current tax collector.  
 
43-Q) What is the name and version of the telephone system currently used by the tax office and how 
 many incoming and outgoing phone lines are currently connected to the telephone system? Does the 
 City pay for the telephone lines or does the tax collector? 
 

43-A) The telephone system consisting of six lines used by the tax collector’s office is provided by the   
 city.  
 
44-Q) Does the City permit the tax collector to perform tax deed sales of real estate pursuant to statute? 
 

   44-A) Yes 
 

         45-Q) Does the City permit the tax collector to sell tax liens on real estate to third parties pursuant to     
        statute? 
  
        45-A) Yes 
 
        46-Q) Are there any City requirements or preference as to how uncollected taxes owned by the present tax   
       collector are to be handled if the City selected a new provider (i.e. can the prior taxes remain with the  
       old collector and any future collections by the new vendor would be applied to the earliest due taxes first)? 

 
        46-A) The city has no preference as to how uncollected taxes owned by the present tax collector are       
      handled by a new provider. 
 
        47-Q) Since the City does not own the delinquent accounts, is any new tax collector liable by statute to     
       collect those delinquent accounts? 
 
        47-A) See current contract provision and CGS12-144b 
 
        48-Q) As the Torrington situation is unique, regarding references, is it acceptable to provide references  from 
    delinquent collection clients located in Connecticut? 
 
        48-A) Yes 
 
      49-Q) Will the City affirmatively state that there will be a contract provision obligating the City to  abide  and 
    adhere to all federal, state and local laws? Will that contract provision include a time period for the City  
    to  cure any default? Will that contract provision include a penalty for failing to cure the default within 
    a prescribed time period? 
 
      49-A) The city is obligated to abide by all Federal and State laws and its City Charter. There is no need   
        for contract provisions.  

 
      



 
 
       50-Q) Does the City pay all expenses of DMV put‐on and take‐offs or is that the responsibility of the tax     
       collector?  If the tax collector, will the City allow a DMV fee to be added to each delinquent bill (as    
       many  other towns currently do) to offset this cost? 
 

        50-A) Tax Collector has right to charge all fees allowed by Statute in collection of taxes and may charge                       
           the same to the delinquent taxpayer and collect same as part of the tax due. 
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